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Form FR Y-6 
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. 

Elkins, West Virginia 
Year Ending December 31, 2020 

 
 

 
Report Item 
 
1.  a.  Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. is not required to file form 10K with the                                                                       

Securities and Exchange Commission. 
 
      b. Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. does prepare an annual report for its 

shareholders.  Annual report provided as Attachment A. 
 
 
2.  a.  Organizational Chart 
 

Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. 
No LEI 

Elkins, West Virginia 
Incorporated in West Virginia 

 

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A. 
No LEI 

Elkins, West Virginia 
A 100% Owned Subsidiary 

Of 
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. 

Incorporated in West Virginia 

 
 

2. b.  Submitted via e-mail on February 11, 2021. 
 

 

I 
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FORM FR Y-6 

MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC. 

DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

 

Report Item 3: Shareholders 

(1)a (1)b (1)c (2)a (2)b (2)c 

Report Item 3(1): Shareholders 

Current shareholders with ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power to vote 

   as of 12-31-20. 

 

        3(1)a                                  3(1)b                               3(1)c                                                                             

Name & Address            Country of Citizenship      Number of Each Class            Percentage 

(City, State, Country)        Or Incorporation             of Voting Securities 
 

 

 

Shriners Hospitals for Crippled  USA   33,300    7.96% 

  Children                                                                                          Common Stock 

Tampa, Florida USA 

 

Cecelia W. Wallace   USA   23,680    5.66% 

Mill Creek, WV USA                                                                        Common Stock 

                                                                                                          

 

Report Item 3(2): Shareholders 

Shareholders not listed in 3(1) that had ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with power 

  to vote during the fiscal year ending 12-31-20. 

. 

        3(2)a                                  3(2)b                               3(2)c                  

Name & Address            Country of Citizenship    Number of Each Class             Percentage 

(City, State, Country)          Or Incorporation         of Voting Securities 
 

            NONE                                        NONE                                  NONE                                   NONE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Form FR Y-6

Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc.

December 31, 2020

Report Items 4: Directors and Officers

(1) (2) (3) a,b,c and (4) a,b,c

(1) (2) (3) a (3) b (3) c 4(a) 4 (b) 4 (c)

Name & Address

(City, State, Country)

Principal Occupation If Other Than 

With Bank Holding Company

Title & Position with Bank 

Holding Company

Title & Position With Subsidiaries

(Name of Subsidiary)

Title & Position With Other 

Businesses

(Name of Other Business)

Percentage of Voting Shares 

in Bank Holding Company

Percentage of Voting 

Shares in Subsidiaries

(Name of Subsidiary)

Name of Other Companies With 

a 25% or Greater Voting Interest

T. Richard Harvey

Elkins, WV

United States

Chariman of the Board, President and 

Chief Executive Officer of Mountain 

Valley Bank, N.A.

Director

President & Chief Executive 

Officer

Chariman of the Board, President and 

Chief Executive Officer

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

None 0.98% N/A N/A

Donald J.  Judy

Beverly, WV

United States

Retired Director

Chairman of the Board

Vice Chairman of the Board

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

Retired 3.83% N/A N/A

Russell T. Linger, Jr.

Huttonsville, WV

United States

Dairy Farmer Director Director

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

President

Linger Farms Inc.

2.09% N/A Linger Farms Inc.

50% Interest

Pat A. Nichols

Davis, WV

United States

Attorney at Law Director Director

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

Owner

Pat A. Nichols

Attorney at Law

0.78% N/A Pat A. Nichols

Attorney at Law

100% Owner

David J. Orr

Parsons, WV

United States

Consultant Director

Executive Vice President

Director

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

Owner

Orr Enterprises LLC

3.31% N/A Orr Enterprises LLC

100% Owner

Richard L. Thompson

Elkins, WV

United States

Rustic Fence Manufacturing Director Director

Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.

President

Judy Fencecraft, Inc.

2.13% N/A Judy Fencecraft, Inc.

100% Owner
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JJ, MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC. 
317 Davis Ave. , P.O. Box 1969, Elkins, WV 26241 (304) 637-2265 

Dear Stockholders: 

On behalf of the directors, officers, and employees of Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. 
and Mountain Valley Bank, N.A., we are pleased to submit herewith our audited consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant impact on all facets of life in 2020. Every 
individual and business dealt with trying times and challenging issues throughout the year. 
Mountain Valley Bank has taken extraordinary measures during this pandemic to enable us to 
continue to provide for the financial needs of our customers and support the communities we 
serve. Indeed, all aspects of our operations were affected by the pandemic, and it became 
necessary to transform the way we do business in a very short period of time. Our customers 
adapted as well, and expanded their use of our alternative delivery channels including internet 
and mobile banking, online bill payment, debit cards, ATMs, and cash management. 

Our primary focus throughout 2020 was to ensure a safe and clean environment for our 
employees and our customers, and to assist our customers in any way possible to help them 
navigate through these uncertain times. Our bank is an active participant in the Small Business 
Administration's Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). Our loan department personnel have 
done an outstanding job administering this program, which continues to provide a lifeline to 
many businesses throughout our region during these difficult economic times. 

While managing through a year unlike any other, our organization's financial 
performance remained strong in 2020. Assets on our balance sheet grew by $28,485,000, or 
19.8%, and we finished the year with total assets of $172,228,903. The PPP loans that we booked 
during the year contributed significantly to this growth. Total deposits showed substantial 
growth of $27,208,000, or 22.6% during the year, enhanced by a considerable amount of 
Economic Impact Payments kept on deposit by our customers. 

Our earnings performance was solid again in 2020, as we posted net income of $1,324,116 
for the year. These earnings, along with our strong capital position, enabled our Board of 
Directors to maintain our dividend to shareholders of $1.15 per share for the year. 

Our employees continue to do a remarkable job during these trying times, and we 
acknowledge their significant contributions to our ongoing success. Our bank, and the banking 
system in general, have shown an amazing resilience throughout these days of pandemic. We 
look forward to putting these unprecedented times behind us, and we look to the future with 
confidence and optimism. 

T. Richard Harvey 
President and CEO 
Mountain Valley Bank, N.A. 

Sincerely, 

~~ 
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc.
Elkins, West Virginia  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. and 
subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and 
the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ 
equity, and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audits.  We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion.

1



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary as of December 
31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of their operations and cash flows for the years ended December 
31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.

Fairmont, West Virginia
February 16, 2021

2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020    2019
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (Note 2) $ 2,723,507 $ 1,994,558
Interest-bearing deposits in other banks 25,225,215 10,678,080
Federal funds sold -- 659,652

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 27,948,722 13,332,290

Investment securities (Note 3)
Available-for-sale securities, at approximate market value 38,857,319 34,063,310

Loans: (Note 4) 103,488,821 94,259,021
Less: Unearned income (288,343) (141,529)

Allowance for loan losses (1,275,904) (1,167,692)
Net Loans 101,924,574 92,949,800

Bank premises, furniture and equipment, net (Note 5) 1,348,025 1,324,752
Accrued interest receivable and other assets 2,150,263 2,073,892

TOTAL ASSETS $172,228,903 $143,744,044

LIABILITIES
Deposits: (Note 6)

Noninterest-bearing $ 55,336,222 $ 39,207,905
Interest-bearing 92,174,061 81,094,192

Total Deposits 147,510,283 120,302,097

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (Note 7) 1,122,619 1,279,798
Interest, taxes and other liabilities 3,027,792 2,315,513

Total Liabilities 151,660,694 123,897,408

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $.20; 1,000,000 shares authorized;

508,020 shares issued 101,604 101,604
Additional paid-in capital 1,175,565 1,175,565
Retained earnings (Note 10) 22,973,872 22,130,693
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) (Note 11) (1,301,234) (1,179,628)
Less: Common stock held in treasury, 89,814 shares at cost (2,381,598) (2,381,598)

Total Stockholders' Equity 20,568,209 19,846,636

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $172,228,903 $143,744,044

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

2020 2019 2018
INTEREST INCOME

Interest and fees on loans $ 5,334,999 $ 5,345,910 $ 4,956,630
Deposits in other banks 85,257 93,375 57,596
Interest on federal funds sold 225 101,162 47,782
Investment securities:

Taxable 281,438 442,338 404,222
Tax-exempt 358,543 287,325 266,562

Total Interest Income 6,060,462 6,270,110 5,732,792

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on deposits and borrowed funds 407,443 385,746 267,099

NET INTEREST INCOME 5,653,019 5,884,364 5,465,693
Provision for loan losses (Note 4) 156,000 50,000 --

Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 5,497,019 5,834,364 5,465,693

NONINTEREST INCOME
Charges and fees on deposit accounts 254,337 308,119 311,520
Debit and credit card fees 407,163 393,504 367,096
Other operating income 84,597 72,273 77,311
Gain on investment securities, net 11,519 28,524 --

Total Noninterest Income 757,616 802,420 755,927

NONINTEREST EXPENSES
Salaries and employee benefits 2,667,425 2,637,994 2,538,715
Occupancy and equipment 393,714 390,990 384,121
Data processing 474,719 475,383 471,795
Director and committee fees 115,550 114,750 122,950
Postage 78,899 81,954 77,815
ATM fees 273,775 259,787 242,333
Dues and assessments 111,085 123,350 140,475
Stationery and supplies 53,644 40,386 54,140
Advertising and public relations 49,819 65,104 65,832
Loss on sale of other real estate 815 -- --
Other operating expenses 391,174 401,227 359,983

Total Noninterest Expenses 4,610,619 4,590,925 4,458,159

Income Before Income Taxes 1,644,016 2,045,859 1,763,461
Income Taxes (Note 8) 319,900 440,200 363,000

                                      NET INCOME $ 1,324,116 $ 1,605,659 $ 1,400,461

Net Income Per Weighted Average Common Share $ 3.17 $ 3.84 $ 3.35

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

2020 2019 2018

Net Income $ 1,324,116 $ 1,605,659 $ 1,400,461

Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of tax:

Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising 

during period (Net of tax of $(140,515),
$(195,785), and $28,265) 379,912 529,346 (76,420)

Less:  reclassification adjustment for (gains)
included in net income (Net of tax of
$3,110, $7,701, and $-0-) (8,409) (20,823) --

371,503 508,523 (76,420)

Defined benefit pension plans:

Net (loss) gain arising during period (Net of 
tax of $182,383, $62,786, and $(24,406)) (493,109) (169,753) 65,987

Less:  amortization of prior service cost 
included in net periodic pension cost
(Net of tax of $-0-, $-0-, and $1,596) -- -- (4,316)

(493,109) (169,753) 61,671

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income (121,606) 338,770 (14,749)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME $ 1,202,510 $ 1,944,429 $ 1,385,712

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

Accumulated
Additional Other Total

Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury Stockholders’
Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Equity

Balance, December 31, 2017 $101,604 $1,175,565 $20,065,537 $ (1,503,649) $(2,381,598) $17,457,459

Net income 1,400,461 1,400,461

Other comprehensive (loss) (14,749) (14,749)

Total Comprehensive Income 1,385,712

Cash dividends $1.10 per share (460,027) (460,027)

Balance, December 31, 2018 101,604 1,175,565 21,005,971 (1,518,398) (2,381,598) 18,383,144

Net income 1,605,659 1,605,659

Other comprehensive income 338,770 338,770

Total Comprehensive Income 1,944,429

Cash dividends $1.15 per share (480,937) (480,937)

Balance, December 31, 2019 101,604 1,175,565 22,130,693 (1,179,628) (2,381,598) 19,846,636

Net income 1,324,116 1,324,116

Other comprehensive (loss) (121,606) (121,606)

Total Comprehensive Income 1,202,510

Cash dividends $1.15 per share (480,937) (480,937)

Balance, December 31, 2020 $101,604 $1,175,565 $22,973,872 $ (1,301,234) $(2,381,598) $20,568,209

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

2020 2019 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 1,324,116 $ 1,605,659 $ 1,400,461
Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 156,000 50,000 --
Depreciation, amortization, and accretion 230,520 173,766 196,534
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 24,800 22,500 (6,400)
Realized investment security (gains) (11,519) (28,524) --
Loss on other real estate 815 -- --
(Increase) in interest receivable and other assets (144,493) (183,511) (28,406)
Increase in interest, taxes, and other liabilities 36,787 50,944 66,503

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 1,617,026 1,690,834 1,628,692

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Securities available-for-sale

Proceeds from maturities and calls 23,001,921 20,496,359 11,204,296
Payments for purchases (27,372,152) (18,501,633) (10,526,851)

Net (increase) in loans (9,177,524) (2,494,224) (747,813)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate owned 134,235 -- 33,600
(Additions) to premises, furniture, and equipment (157,144) (70,136) (88,332)

NET CASH (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (13,570,664) (569,634) (125,100)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in deposits 27,208,186 5,829,533 319,816
Net (decrease) increase in repurchase agreements (157,179) (2,654,739) 313,331
Cash dividends (480,937) (480,937) (460,027)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 26,570,070 2,693,857 173,120

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14,616,432 3,815,057 1,676,712

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 13,332,290 9,517,233 7,840,521

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $27,948,722 $13,332,290 $ 9,517,233

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

December 31, 2020

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Mountain-Valley 
Bancshares, Inc. (the company) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Mountain Valley Bank, 
N.A. (the bank).  All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. The company consolidates subsidiaries in which it either 
holds, directly or indirectly, more than 50% of the voting rights or where it exercises 
control.  The company has no other entities that are required to be consolidated under 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Nature of Operations
The company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and small businesses 
through its offices in Randolph and Tucker counties, West Virginia. Its primary deposit 
products are demand deposits, savings and term certificate accounts and its primary 
lending products are residential mortgage, commercial, and consumer loans.

Use of Estimates
In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States (U.S. GAAP), management is required to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of 
the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  Material estimates 
that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the 
determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of deferred tax assets, other-
than-temporary impairments of securities, and the fair value of financial instruments.

Reclassifications
Certain items from 2019 and 2018 have been reclassified to conform to the 2020 financial 
statement presentation.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk
Most of the company’s activities are with customers located within Randolph and Tucker 
counties, West Virginia.  Note 3 discusses the types of securities the company utilizes for 
investments. Note 4 discusses the types of loans the company grants to its customers.  The 
company does not have any significant lending concentrations to any one industry or 
customer. Additionally, the bank maintains correspondent banking relationships in which 
the bank is in excess of federally insured limits at various times throughout the year.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents 
include cash and balances due from banks, federal funds sold, and certain interest-bearing 
deposits in other banks.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Securities
Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of
purchase.  Debt securities that the company has the positive intent and the ability to hold 
to maturity are carried at amortized cost.  Securities to be held for indefinite periods of 
time are classified as available for sale and carried at estimated fair value. Historically, 
the company has been able to hold available for sale securities to maturity and believes it 
has the ability to hold these securities to maturity in the future.  Unrealized gains and 
losses on securities classified as available for sale are carried as a separate component of
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), net of deferred income taxes.

Gains or losses on sales of securities recognized by the specific identification method are 
reported as securities gains and losses within noninterest income or noninterest expense of 
the Consolidated Statements of Income.  The company reviews securities on a quarterly 
basis for possible impairment.  The company determines whether a decline in fair value 
below the amortized cost basis of a security is other-than-temporary.  This determination
requires significant judgment.  In making this judgment, the company’s review includes 
an analysis of the facts and circumstances of each individual investment such as the
severity of loss, the length of time the fair value has been below cost, the expectation for 
that security’s performance, the creditworthiness of the issuer, recent changes in external 
credit ratings, and the assessment of collection of the security’s contractual amounts from 
the issuer or issuers.

If the company intends to sell, or it is probable that it will be required to sell an impaired 
debt security before recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current period credit loss, 
other-than-temporary impairment is recognized in earnings.  The credit loss is defined as
the difference between the present value of cash flows expected to be collected and the 
amortized cost basis.  The amount recognized in earnings is equal to the entire difference 
between the security’s amortized cost basis and its fair value at the balance sheet date.  If 
the company does not intend to sell, and it is unlikely that it will be required to sell the 
impaired debt security prior to recovery of its amortized cost basis less any current-period 
credit loss, the other-than-temporary impairment is separated into the following: 1) the 
amount representing the credit loss, which is recognized within noninterest expense of the 
Consolidated Statements of Income, and 2) the amount related to all other factors, which
is recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) within shareholders’ 
equity of the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock
The company, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Pittsburgh, is 
required to maintain an investment in capital stock of the FHLB.  Based on redemption 
provisions of the FHLB, the stock has no quoted market value and is carried at cost.  
Management reviews the FHLB stock for impairment based on the ultimate recoverability 
of the cost basis.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Loans
The company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans to its customers.  A 
substantial portion of the loan portfolio is represented by residential and commercial 
mortgage loans throughout Randolph and Tucker counties, West Virginia.  The ability of 
the company’s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and 
general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal 
balances adjusted for the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees (unearned 
income) on originated loans.  Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance.
Loan origination fees are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan 
yield using the interest method.  Loan origination costs are primarily being recognized as
incurred.  The use of this method of recognition does not produce results that are 
materially different from results which would have been produced if such costs were 
deferred and amortized as an adjustment of the loan yield.

The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the 
loan is 90 days past due unless the credit is well-secured and in process of collection.  
Personal loans are typically charged-off no later than 180 days past due.  Past due status 
is based on the contractual terms of the loan.  In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual
or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered 
doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-
off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the 
cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual status.  Loans 
are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually 
due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses
The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred 
through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings.  Loan losses are charged against 
the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is 
confirmed.  Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based 
upon management’s periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical 
experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect
the borrower’s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and 
prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires 
estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes 
available.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses (Continued)
The allowance consists of allocated and general components.  The allocated component 
relates to loans that are classified as impaired.  For those loans that are classified as 
impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value
or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that 
loan.  The general component covers non-classified loans and is based on historical 
charge-off experience and expected loss given default derived from the company’s 
internal risk rating process.  Other adjustments may be made to the allowance for pools 
of loans after an assessment of internal or external influences on credit quality that are 
not fully reflected in the historical loss or risk rating data.  

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is 
probable that the company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal 
or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement.  Factors
considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral 
value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when 
due.  Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally
are not classified as impaired.  Management determines the significance of payment 
delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the 
circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, 
the reasons for the delay, the borrower’s prior payment record, and the amount of the 
shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed.  

Generally, the company considers impaired loans to include:
Loans classified as non-accrual loans
Loans which have been classified as substandard, doubtful, or loss and/or 
which have a specific loan loss allocation
Loans past due for longer than 90 days that have a principal balance of 
$50,000 or greater

Periodically, groups of homogeneous loans not included in the above categories are 
collectively evaluated for impairment.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instruments
In the ordinary course of business, the company has entered into commitments to extend 
credit, including letters of credit.  Such financial instruments are recorded when they are 
funded.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreclosed Assets
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially 
recorded at fair value less cost to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost 
basis.  Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management 
and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount, including capital
improvements, or fair value less cost to sell.  Revenue and expenses from operations and 
subsequent changes in the valuation allowance are included in net expenses from 
foreclosed assets.

Premises and Equipment
Land is carried at cost.  Buildings and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated 
depreciation computed primarily on the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets.

Advertising Costs
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes
The company evaluates its income tax expense utilizing two components: current and 
deferred.  The company determines current income taxes, i.e. taxes to be paid or refunded 
for the current period, by applying the provisions of the current tax law to taxable income 
or excess of deductions over revenues.  The company determines deferred income taxes 
using the liability (or balance sheet) method.  Under this method, the net deferred tax 
asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the book and tax 
bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in 
the period in which they occur.

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) results from changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities between periods.  Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more likely than not, 
based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be realized or sustained upon 
examination.  The term more likely than not means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; 
the terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or 
litigation processes, if any.  A tax position that meets the more likely than not recognition 
threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that
has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement.  The 
determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more likely than not 
recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the 
reporting date and is subject to management’s judgment.  Deferred tax assets are reduced 
by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely 
than not that some portion or all of a deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, on income taxes as a component of 
operating expenses.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes (Continued)
The company and the bank are subject to income taxes in the U.S. Federal and West 
Virginia jurisdictions.  The company and its subsidiary file consolidated federal and state 
income tax returns.

Treasury Stock
Common stock shares repurchased are recorded as treasury stock at cost.

Earnings Per Common Share
Earnings per share represent income attributable to common stockholders divided by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Treasury 
shares are not deemed outstanding for earnings per share calculations.

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of net income and other comprehensive (loss) income.  
Other comprehensive income includes unrealized gains on securities available for sale, 
unrealized losses related to factors other than credit risk on debt securities, and changes in 
the funded status of the pension plan which are also recognized as separate components of 
equity.  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and 
other assumptions, as more fully disclosed in Note 9.  Fair value estimates involve 
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment.  Changes in assumptions or in market 
conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

Cash Flows
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary paid approximately $317,000, $393,000,
and $355,000 of applicable income taxes during 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.  The 
company made transfers of loans to foreclosed assets held for resale and repossessions of 
approximately $47,000, $88,000, and $34,000 in 2020, 2019, and 2018, respectively.
Payments of interest did not vary materially from interest reported on the consolidated 
statements of income for the respective years.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards
The following standards were adopted during the year ended December 31, 2020:

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, “Revenues from Contracts with 
Customers”.  ASU No. 2014-09 provides a framework to address revenue recognition 
issues, creating more consistency and comparability of revenue recognition practices
across entities and industries, and improves the usefulness of information provided to 
financial statement users.  The company’s revenue is composed of net interest income and 
noninterest income.  The scope of the guidance explicitly excludes net interest income as 
well as many other revenues for financial assets and liabilities including loans, leases, 
securities, and derivatives.  Accordingly, the majority of the company’s revenues were not
affected.  This update is effective for the company’s annual reporting period of December 
31, 2020, and did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial 
statements. See Note 18 for further discussion.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-08, “Receivables – Nonrefundable Fees
and Other Costs”.  ASU No. 2017-08 amends the amortization period for certain 
purchased callable debt securities held at a premium, from the contractual life of the 
instrument to the earliest call date.  This update is effective for the company’s annual 
reporting period of December 31, 2020 and did not have a material impact on the 
company’s consolidated financial statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, “Fair Value Measurements”.  ASU
2018-13 improves the effectiveness of disclosure requirements on fair value measurements. 
This update is effective for the company’s annual reporting period of December 31, 2020
and did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-03, “Codification Improvements to 
Financial Instruments”.  The amendments in this update represent changes to clarify or 
improve the codification. The amendments make the codification easier to understand
and easier to apply by eliminating inconsistencies and providing clarifications.  This
update is effective for the company’s annual reporting period of December 31, 2020, and 
did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

New Accounting Standards (Continued)
The following standards were adopted during the year ended December 31, 2019:

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01, “Financial Instruments – Overall 
(ASC Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial 
Liabilities”.  The amendments in this update aim to enhance the reporting model for 
financial instruments and to provide users of financial statements with more decision-
useful information.  This update was effective for the company’s annual reporting period 
of December 31, 2019, and did not have a material impact on the company’s consolidated 
financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, “Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): 
Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments”.  The objective of ASU No. 
2016-15 is to reduce the existing diversity in practice in how certain cash receipts and cash 
payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows.  This update was
effective for the company’s annual reporting period of December 31, 2019, and did not 
have a material impact on the company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, “Compensation – Retirement 
Benefits”.  ASU No. 2017-07 reflects changes to improve the presentation of net periodic 
pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost for defined benefit pension plans 
as well as other postretirement benefits. This update was effective for the company’s 
annual reporting period of December 31, 2019, and did not have a material impact on the 
company’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Federal Reserve establishes reserve requirements within specified ranges for purposes of 
implementing monetary policy on certain types of deposits of depository institutions.  
Effective March 26, 2020, the Federal Reserve reduced the reserve requirement to zero in 
order to support the flow of credit to households and businesses during the COVID-19
Pandemic.  As of December 31, 2019, the subsidiary bank’s required reserve balance was 
approximately $1,206,000.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The amortized cost and approximate fair values of available-for-sale investment securities, 
with gross unrealized gains and losses, are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2020
Gross Gross Approximate

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair  
Cost Gain   (Loss)               Value

Debt Securities:
U.S. agency securities $ 97,133 $ 1,758 $ -- $ 98,891
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GSEs) 12,785,720 9,808 -- 12,795,528
State and municipal securities 18,963,394 537,531 (7,388) 19,493,537
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE residential 6,303,075 169,955 (3,667) 6,469,363
$ 38,149,322 $ 719,052 $ (11,055) $ 38,857,319

December 31, 2019
Gross Gross Approximate

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair  
Cost  Gain   (Loss)               Value

Debt Securities:
U.S. agency securities $ 120,514 $ -- $ (1,556) $ 118,958
U.S. government-sponsored 

enterprises (GSEs) 11,525,985 14,601 (10,174) 11,530,412
State and municipal securities 16,185,122 220,203 (23,160) 16,382,165
Mortgage-backed securities

GSE residential 6,032,600 34,597 (35,422) 6,031,775
$ 33,864,221 $ 269,401 $ (70,312) $ 34,063,310

Government-sponsored enterprises (GSEs) include Federal National Mortgage Association, 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, and Federal Home Loan Banks.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company held no securities of any single issuer (excluding 
the U.S. government-sponsored enterprises) with a book value that exceeded 10% of 
stockholders’ equity.

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of available-for-sale investment securities by 
contractual maturity and estimated repayments at December 31, 2020 were as follows:

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

Within 1 year $ 8,935,913 $ 8,983,111
Over 1 year through 5 years 16,354,212 16,587,996
After 5 years through 10 years 4,995,613 5,159,958
Over 10 years 1,560,509 1,656,891

31,846,247 32,387,956

Mortgaged-backed securities 6,303,075 6,469,363

$ 38,149,322 $ 38,857,319

Investment securities with an approximate carrying amount of $15,554,000 and $15,198,000, at 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, were pledged to secure public deposits and for other
purposes required or permitted by law.

There were no sales of securities available-for-sale during the years ended December 31, 2020, 
2019, or 2018.

Temporarily Impaired Securities

The following tables show the gross unrealized losses and fair value of the entity’s investments 
with unrealized losses that are not deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired, aggregated 
by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous 
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Temporarily Impaired Securities (Continued)

Available-for-sale securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position are as 
follows:

December 31, 2020
Less Than 12 Months Over 12 Months Total
Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
(Loss) Value (Loss) Value (Loss) Value

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
U.S. agency securities $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
U.S. government-

sponsored enterprises
(GSEs) -- -- -- -- -- --

State and municipal
securities (7,388) 412,384 -- -- (7,388) 412,384

Mortgaged-backed
GSE residential (3,667) 457,773 -- -- (3,667) 457,773

Total $ (11,055) $ 870,157 $ -- $ -- $ (11,055) $ 870,157

December 31, 2019
Less Than 12 Months Over 12 Months Total
Gross Gross Gross

Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
(Loss) Value (Loss) Value (Loss) Value

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
U.S. agency securities $ -- $ -- $ (1,556) $ 118,958 $ (1,556) $ 118,958
U.S. government-

sponsored enterprises
(GSEs) (1,286) 2,496,347 (8,888) 4,041,041 (10,174) 6,537,388

State and municipal
securities (18,362) 1,310,307 (4,798) 1,078,293 (23,160) 2,388,600

Mortgaged-backed
GSE residential (1,772) 352,921 (33,650) 2,236,842 (35,422) 2,589,763

Total $ (21,420) $ 4,159,575 $ (48,892) $ 7,475,134 $ (70,312) $ 11,634,709

At December 31, 2020, there was one GSE security with an unrealized loss of $3,667 and one
state and municipal security with an unrealized loss of $7,388.

At December 31, 2019, there was one U.S. agency security with an unrealized loss of $1,556
and seven GSE securities with an unrealized loss of $10,174.  In addition, there were eight state 
and municipal securities with an unrealized loss of $23,160 and six mortgage-backed securities 
with an unrealized loss of $35,422.
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NOTE 3. INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit 
quality, and because the company does not intend to sell the investments and it is not more
likely than not the company will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their 
amortized cost bases, which may be at maturity, the company does not consider these
investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired at December 31, 2020 and 2019.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

Upon acquisition of a security, the company decides whether it is within the scope of the
accounting guidance for beneficial interests in securitized financial assets or will be 
evaluated for impairment under the accounting guidance for investments in debt and 
equity securities.  At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company has no beneficial 
interests in securitized financial assets.

Management routinely conducts periodic reviews to identify and evaluate each 
investment security.  Factors such as default rate, severity of unrealized loss and credit 
ratings are considered to determine whether an other-than-temporary impairment has 
occurred.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company does not consider any securities to be 
other-than-temporarily impaired.

NOTE 4. LOANS

Loans and loan commitments are comprised primarily of loans to borrowers in lumber, 
auto, multi-family and single family residential real estate, and retail/service industries 
throughout West Virginia.  Collateralization centers primarily around commercial and 
residential real estate, personal property and business equipment.
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

A summary of the component balances of loans at December 31, 2020 and 2019, is as follows:

2020 2019
Real estate loans:

Residential 1-4 family $ 43,700,117 $ 42,561,696
Commercial and agricultural 35,153,905 33,721,355
Construction and land development 3,842,843 4,554,898
State, county, municipal loans 222,611 292,555

Total real estate loans 82,919,476 81,130,504

Commercial and agricultural loans 9,994,016 10,306,987

Paycheck Protection Program loans 7,691,253 --

Consumer installment loans 2,884,076 2,821,530

Total Loans $103,488,821 $ 94,259,021

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), signed into law March 27, 
2020, created the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP), the objective of which is to provide small 
businesses with financial support to cover payroll and certain other qualifying expenses. Loans made 
under the PPP are fully guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (SBA), whose guarantee is 
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States.  The principal amount and accrued interest of 
PPP loans are fully forgivable, provided certain eligibility and use of funds criteria are satisfied in 
compliance with the program guidelines.  The SBA will reimburse lenders for PPP loans that are 
forgiven subject to applications for forgiveness submitted by the borrowers.  Borrowers must certify 
their compliance with all requirements of the program and submit other necessary documentation in 
completing the applications for forgiveness.

An analysis of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is 
as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Balance at beginning of year $ 1,167,692 $ 1,159,133 $ 1,115,470
Loans charged-off (49,398) (56,585) (48,963)
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off 1,610 15,144 92,626
Provision for loan losses 156,000 50,000 --
Balance at end of year $ 1,275,904 $ 1,167,692 $ 1,159,133

The company is not committed to lend additional funds to borrowers whose loans are considered 
impaired or whose loans have been modified.
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

The company maintains an internal loan grading system to monitor the credit quality of commercial 
loans. Commercial loan risk grades are determined based on an evaluation of the relevant 
characteristics of each loan, assigned at the inception of each loan and adjusted thereafter at any time 
to reflect changes in the risk profile and sustainability of the primary source of repayment and overall 
financial strength of the borrower.  This includes an analysis of cash flow available to repay debt, 
profitability, liquidity, leverage, and overall financial trends.  Other factors include management, 
industry or property type risks, an assessment of secondary sources of repayment such as collateral or
guarantees, other terms and conditions of the loans that may increase or reduce risk, and economic 
conditions and other external factors that may influence repayment capability and financial condition.

The company performs an annual review of a sample of commercial borrowers with an aggregate 
indebtedness of $100,000 or greater.  In addition, the company performs a quarterly review of all
loans greater than $10,000 with a past due status of greater than 45 days.

The company uses an eight-point internal risk rating system.  The first five categories are considered
not criticized, and are aggregated as “Pass” rated.  The criticized rating categories utilized by 
management generally follow bank regulatory definitions. 

Loans classified as Special Mention have potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close 
attention.  If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment 
prospects for the loans or in the credit position at some future date.  Borrowers may be experiencing 
adverse operating trends such as declining revenues or margins.  Adverse economic or market 
conditions, such as interest rate increases or the entry of a new competitor, may also support a special 
mention rating.  Nonfinancial reasons for rating a loan as Special Mention include management 
problems, pending litigation, an ineffective loan agreement or other material structural weakness, and 
any other significant deviation from prudent lending practices.

Loans classified as Substandard are inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying 
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any.  Loans so classified have a well-defined 
weakness, or weaknesses, that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt by the borrower.  They are 
characterized by the distinct possibility the company will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not 
corrected.  They require more intensive supervision by management.  Substandard loans are generally 
characterized by current or expected unprofitable operations, inadequate debt service coverage, 
inadequate liquidity, or marginal capitalization.  Repayment may depend on collateral.

Loans classified as Doubtful are loans that have all the weaknesses inherent in one classified as
Substandard with the added characteristic the weaknesses make collection in full, on the basis of 
currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.  Loans classified 
as Doubtful have a high probability of total or substantial loss, but because of specific pending events 
that may strengthen the loan, its classification as loss is deferred.  Doubtful borrowers are usually in 
default, lack adequate liquidity or capital, and lack the resources necessary to remain an operating
entity.
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

Residential real estate and consumer loans are not assigned specific internal risk grades, unless they 
are included in the quarterly loan review of loans greater than $10,000 with a past due status of 
greater than 45 days.  Loans not included in the quarterly review are considered “Pass”.

The following tables represent the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aggregate Pass and 
the criticized categories of Special Mention, Substandard and Doubtful as of December 31, 2020 and 
2019:

2020
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Pass $ 36,523,769 $ 17,685,269 $ 45,791,773 $ 2,881,108 $102,881,919

Special Mention -- -- 310,097 2,968 313,065

Substandard -- -- 293,837 -- 293,837

Doubtful -- -- -- -- --

Total $ 36,523,769 $ 17,685,269 $ 46,395,707 $ 2,884,076 $103,488,821

2019
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Pass $ 34,013,910 $ 10,306,987 $ 46,505,436 $ 2,816,817 $ 93,643,150

Special Mention -- -- 327,922 4,713 332,635

Substandard -- -- 283,236 -- 283,236

Doubtful -- -- -- -- --

Total $ 34,013,910 $ 10,306,987 $ 47,116,594 $ 2,821,530 $ 94,259,021
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

Management further monitors the performance and credit quality of the loan portfolio by analyzing 
the age of the portfolio.  Measurements of delinquency and past due status are based on the 
contractual terms of each loan.

Past due loans are reviewed on a monthly basis to identify loans for nonaccrual status.  Generally, 
when collection in full of the principal and interest is jeopardized, the loan is placed on nonaccrual.  
The accrual of interest income on most loans generally is discontinued when a loan becomes 90 to 120 
days past due as to principal and interest. However, regardless of delinquency status, if a loan is fully 
secured and in the process of collection and resolution of collection is expected in the near term 
(generally less than 90 days), then the loan will not be placed on nonaccrual.  When interest accruals 
are discontinued, unpaid interest recognized in income is reversed. The company’s method of income 
recognition for loans that are classified as nonaccrual is to recognize interest income on a cash basis or 
apply the cash receipt to principal when the ultimate collectability of principal is in doubt.  
Management may elect to continue the accrual of interest when the estimated net realizable value of 
collateral exceeds the principal balance and accrued interest, and the loan is in the process of 
collection.  Nonaccrual loans will not normally be returned to accrual status unless all past due 
principal and interest has been paid.

The following tables present the classes of the loan portfolio summarized by the aging categories of 
performing loans and nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Current  $ 36,518,664 $ 17,685,269 $ 45,175,216 $ 2,869,206 $102,248,355
30 – 90 Days 5,105 -- 865,196 14,870 885,171
> 90 Days -- -- 222,994 -- 222,994

Subtotal 36,523,769 17,685,269 46,263,406 2,884,076 103,356,520

Nonaccrual -- -- 132,301 -- 132,301

TOTAL $ 36,523,769 $ 17,685,269 $ 46,395,707 $ 2,884,076 $103,488,821
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

2019
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Current  $ 33,919,614 $ 10,306,987 $ 45,599,808 $ 2,814,739 $ 92,641,148
30 – 90 Days 94,296 -- 1,183,641 6,791 1,284,728
> 90 Days -- -- 333,145 -- 333,145

Subtotal 34,013,910 10,306,987 47,116,594 2,821,530 94,259,021

Nonaccrual -- -- -- -- --

TOTAL $ 34,013,910 $ 10,306,987 $ 47,116,594 $ 2,821,530 $ 94,259,021

Loans are designated as impaired when, in the opinion of management, based on current information 
and events, the collection of principal and interest in accordance with the loan contract is uncertain.
Typically, the company does not consider loans for impairment unless a sustained period of 
delinquency (i.e. 90-plus days) is noted or there are subsequent events that impact repayment 
probability (i.e. negative financial trends, bankruptcy filings, eminent foreclosure proceedings, etc.).  
Consistent with the company’s existing method of income recognition for loans, interest on impaired
loans, except those classified as nonaccrual, is recognized as income using the accrual method.  
Impaired loans, or portions thereof, are charged-off when deemed uncollectible.

The following tables set forth the company’s impaired loan information by class of loans as of      
December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020
Commercial Residential

Real Other Real
Estate Commercial Estate Consumer Total

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ 87,368 $ -- $ 87,368
Related Allowance $ -- $ -- $ 35,000 $ -- $ 35,000

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ 111,252 $ -- $ 111,252

Total Impaired Loans:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ 198,620 $ -- $ 198,620
Unpaid Principal 

Balance $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
Average Recorded

Investment $ -- $ -- $ 131,000 $ -- $ 131,000
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

2019
Commercial Residential

Real Other Real
Estate Commercial Estate Consumer Total

Impaired Loans with Specific Allowance:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
Related Allowance $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

Impaired Loans with No Specific Allowance:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

Total Impaired Loans:
Recorded Investment $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
Unpaid Principal 

Balance $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --
Average Recorded

Investment $ 16,000 $ -- $ 69,000 $ -- $ 85,000

The following table summarizes the approximate recognition of interest income on impaired loans for
the years ended December 31:

2020 2019 2018

Average impaired loans $ 131,000 $ 85,000 $ 73,000

Amount of contractual interest on impaired loans $ 9,000 $ 8,000 $ 5,000

Amount of interest income recognized while impaired $ 4,000 $ 4,000 $ 10,000

The allowance for loan losses is management’s estimate of the probable credit losses inherent in the 
loan portfolio.  Management’s evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses and the
appropriate provision for credit losses is based upon a quarterly evaluation of the portfolio.  This 
evaluation is inherently subjective and requires significant estimates, including the amounts and 
timing of estimated future cash flows, estimated losses on pools of loans based on historical loss 
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which are susceptible to constant and 
significant change.  

Troubled Debt Restructurings
The restructuring of a loan is considered a “troubled debt restructuring” if both (1) the debtor is 
experiencing financial difficulties and (2) the creditor has granted a concession.  Concessions may 
include interest rate reductions or below market interest rates, principal forgiveness, restructuring
amortization schedules and other actions intended to minimize potential losses.  As of December 31, 
2020, there was one troubled debt restructuring with a recorded investment of $45,000.  The loan was
in compliance with restructured terms and did not require a specific reserve in the allowance for loan
loss.  There were no troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2019.
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

Allocations are made for specific loans based upon management’s estimate of the borrower’s ability to
repay and other factors impacting collectability.  Other loans not specifically reviewed are segregated 
by class and allocations are made based upon historical loss percentages adjusted for current 
environmental factors. The environmental factors considered for the portfolio include estimated 
probable inherent, but undetected, losses within the portfolio due to uncertainties in economic 
conditions, delays in obtaining information, including unfavorable information about a borrower’s
financial condition, the difficulty in identifying triggering events that correlate to subsequent loss 
rates, and risk factors that have not yet fully manifested themselves in loss allocation factors.  In 
addition, a portion of the allowance accounts for the inherent imprecision in the allowance for credit 
loss analysis.  During 2020 and 2019, there were no material changes to the accounting policy or 
methodology related to the allowance for loan losses.

Loans deemed to be uncollectible are charged against the allowance for loan losses, while recoveries of 
previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

The following tables summarize the primary segments of the allowance for loan losses segregated into 
the amount required for loans individually evaluated for impairment and the amount required for
loans collectively evaluated for impairment as of December 31, 2020 and 2019.

2020
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Balance, 
Beginning $ 428,229 $ 114,725 $ 581,574 $ 43,164 $ 1,167,692

Charge-offs -- -- (47,066) (2,332) (49,398)
Recoveries -- -- 575 1,035 1,610
Provision 68,774 752 86,453 21 156,000
Balance, Ending $ 497,003 $ 115,477 $ 621,536 $ 41,888 $ 1,275,904

Portfolio Loans:
Individually 

evaluated for 
impairment $ -- $ -- $ 198,620 $ -- $ 198,620

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 36,523,769 17,685,269 46,197,087 2,884,076 103,290,201

Total Portfolio 
Loans $ 36,523,769 $ 17,685,269 $ 46,395,707 $ 2,884,076 $103,488,821
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NOTE 4. LOANS (CONTINUED)

2019
Commercial Other Residential
Real Estate Commercial Real Estate Consumer Total

Balance, 
Beginning $ 451,794 $ 164,913 $ 497,094 $ 45,332 $ 1,159,133

Charge-offs -- -- (55,015) (1,570) (56,585)
Recoveries -- -- 11,239 3,905 15,144
Provision (23,565) (50,188) 128,256 (4,503) 50,000
Balance, Ending $ 428,229 $ 114,725 $ 581,574 $ 43,164 $ 1,167,692

Portfolio Loans:
Individually 

evaluated for
impairment $ -- $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

Collectively 
evaluated for 
impairment 34,013,910 10,306,987 47,116,594 2,821,530 94,259,021

Total Portfolio 
Loans $ 34,013,910 $ 10,306,987 $ 47,116,594 $ 2,821,530 $ 94,259,021

NOTE 5. BANK PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of the cost and accumulated depreciation of premises and equipment at December 31,
2020 and 2019, is as follows:

2020 2019

Land $ 370,454 $ 370,454
Bank premises 2,122,550 2,123,513
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 1,387,687 1,319,875

3,880,691 3,813,842
Allowance for depreciation (2,532,666) (2,489,090)

$ 1,348,025 $ 1,324,752

Depreciation expense for years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 was approximately $134,000,
$138,000, and $137,000, respectively.
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NOTE 6. DEPOSITS

Deposits at December 31, were as follows:
2020 2019

Deposits of individuals, partnerships,
and corporations

Noninterest bearing demand $ 55,336,000 $ 39,208,000
Interest bearing demand 22,718,000 18,612,000
Money market 10,230,000 9,438,000
Savings 38,543,000 32,364,000
Time deposits 20,683,000 20,680,000

Total deposits $ 147,510,000 $ 120,302,000

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more at December 31, 
2020 and 2019, was approximately $1,411,000 and $1,180,000, respectively.

At December 31, 2020, the approximate scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2021 $ 13,265,000
2022 3,026,000
2023 1,228,000
2024 2,364,000
2025 and later 800,000

$ 20,683,000

Deposits of related parties, including directors, executive officers, and their related interests of 
Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. and subsidiary, represented approximately 1% of total deposits at 
December 31, 2020 and 2019.

NOTE 7. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which are classified as secured borrowings, generally 
mature on a daily basis.  Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are reflected at the amount of 
cash received in connection with the transaction.  The company may be required to provide additional 
collateral based on the fair value of the underlying securities.

Additional information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 is as follows:

2020 2019

Average balance $ 1,107,320 $ 1,223,539

Average interest rate .68% .80%

Maximum month-end balance $ 1,272,192 $ 2,604,937

Interest expense $ 7,582 $ 9,764
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NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES

The allocation of federal and state income taxes between current and deferred portions for the years 
ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 is as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Current tax expense:
Federal $ 233,400 $ 348,500 $ 308,800
State 61,700 69,200 60,600

295,100 417,700 369,400
Deferred tax expense (benefit):

Federal 19,300 17,500 (5,000)
State 5,500 5,000 (1,400)

24,800 22,500 (6,400)

INCOME TAXES $ 319,900 $ 440,200 $ 363,000

The reasons for the differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective tax 
rates for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are summarized as follows:

2020 2019 2018

Amount % Amount % Amount %

Statutory federal tax rate $ 345,200 21% $ 429,600 21% $ 370,000 21%
Increase (decrease) 

resulting from:
State taxes, net of

federal tax benefit 54,200 3% 60,000 3% 47,000 3%
Tax-exempt income      (80,300) (5%) (68,000) (3%) (57,000) (3%)
Other items, net 800 -- 18,600 1% 3,000 --

INCOME TAXES $ 319,900 19% $ 440,200 22% $ 363,000 21%
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NOTE 8. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

The components of the deferred tax assets and (liabilities) at December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018 are as 
follows:

2020 2019 2018

Deferred tax assets:
Provision for loan loss $ 280,000 $ 251,000 $ 249,000
Net unrealized depreciation

on available-for-sale
securities -- -- 134,000

Employee benefit plans 672,000 490,000 427,000
Gross deferred tax assets 952,000 741,000 810,000

Deferred tax (liabilities):
Net unrealized appreciation 

on available-for-sale securities (191,000) (54,000) --
Depreciation (49,000) (24,000) (37,000)
Prepaid pension cost (297,000) (265,000) (230,000)
Investment discount accretion (6,000) (9,000) (6,000)
Other items (50,000) (50,000) (50,000)
Gross deferred tax (liabilities) (593,000) (402,000) (323,000)

Net deferred tax assets $ 359,000 $ 339,000 $ 487,000

No deferred income tax asset valuation allowance was provided since it is more likely than not that 
realization of the deferred income tax assets will occur in future years.

The company’s evaluation on December 31, 2020 revealed no uncertain tax positions that would 
have a material impact on the financial statements.  The 2017 through 2020 tax years remain 
subject to examination by the tax authorities.  The company does not believe that any reasonably 
possible changes will occur within the next twelve months that will have a material impact on the 
financial statements.
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Determination of Fair Value

The company uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and
liabilities and to determine fair value disclosures.  The fair value of a financial instrument is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date.  Fair value is best determined based upon quoted
market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the company’s 
various financial instruments.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash 
flows.  Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the 
instrument.

The fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an 
orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at 
the measurement date under current market conditions.  If there has been a significant decrease in the 
volume and level of activity for the asset or liability, a change in valuation technique or the use of 
multiple valuation techniques may be appropriate.  In such instances, determining the price at which
willing market participants would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions 
depends on the facts and circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment.  The fair value is 
a reasonable point within the range that is most representative of fair value under current market 
conditions.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured at fair value in 
three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of
the assumptions used to determine fair value.

Level 1-Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities
generally include debt and equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market.  Valuations
are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets 
or liabilities.

Level 2-Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are 
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  The valuation may be based on 
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other 
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the full 
term of the asset or liability.
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Hierarchy (Continued)

Level 3-Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity 
and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.  Level 3 assets and liabilities include 
financial instruments whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow 
methodologies, or similar techniques, as well as instruments for which determination of fair value 
requires significant management judgment or estimation.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2020

Quoted Prices
In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Total Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Investment securities:
Available-for-sale $38,857,319 $ 3,017,427 $35,839,892 $ --

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019

Quoted Prices
In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Total Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Investment securities:
Available-for-sale $34,063,310 $ 3,094,407 $30,968,903 $ --

During the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the company had no assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3).
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

Certain financial assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles.  Adjustments to the fair value of these assets usually 
result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-market accounting or write-downs of individual 
assets.  (For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, there were no liabilities measured at 
fair value on a non-recurring basis.)

The following describes the valuation techniques used to measure certain financial assets 
recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in the financial statements.

Impaired Loans: Loans are designated as impaired when, in the judgment of management 
based on current information and events, it is probable that all amounts due according to the 
contractual terms of the loan agreement will not be collected.  Impairment is measured based 
upon the present value of expected future cash flows from the loan discounted at the loan’s
effective rate and the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of collateral, if the loan
is collateral dependent.  Fair value is measured using a market approach based on the value of 
the collateral securing the loans.  Collateral may be in the form of real estate or business assets 
including equipment, inventory, and accounts receivable. The vast majority of the collateral is 
real estate.  The value of real estate collateral is determined utilizing an appraisal conducted 
by an independent, licensed appraiser outside of the bank using comparable property sales 
(Level 2).  However, if the collateral is a house or building in the process of construction or if 
an appraisal of the real estate property is over two years old, then the fair value is considered 
Level 3. The value of business equipment is based upon an outside appraisal if deemed 
significant, or the net book value on the applicable business’ financial statements if not 
considered significant using observable market data. Likewise, values for inventory and
accounts receivables collateral are based on financial statement balances or aging reports 
(Level 3).  Impaired loans allocated to the Allowance for Loan Losses are measured at fair 
value on a nonrecurring basis.  Any fair value adjustments are recorded in the period incurred 
as provision for loan losses expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis are summarized below:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2020

Quoted Prices
In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Total Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Impaired Loans $ 198,620 $ -- $ 132,300 $ 66,320
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NOTE 9. FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2019

Quoted Prices
In Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Total Identical Observable Unobservable

Carrying Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

Impaired Loans $ -- $ -- $ -- $ --

NOTE 10. RESTRICTIONS ON DIVIDENDS

The primary source of funds for dividends paid by Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc. is 
dividends received from its subsidiary, Mountain Valley Bank, N.A.  The approval of the 
regulatory agencies is required if the total of all dividends declared by the subsidiary bank in 
any calendar year exceeds the subsidiary bank’s net profits, as defined, for that year combined 
with its retained net profits for the preceding two calendar years. In addition, dividends paid 
by the bank to the company would be prohibited if the effect thereof would cause the bank’s 
capital to be reduced below applicable minimum capital requirements.
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NOTE 11. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Following are the components of other comprehensive income (loss) as of December 31, 2017,
and for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2019, and 2020:

Unrealized
Gain (Loss) Accumulated

on Securities Minimum Other
Available- Pension    Comprehensive
For-Sale (Liability) Income (Loss)

Balance December 31, 2017, Accumulated
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of

Deferred Tax $ (286,768) $ (1,216,881) $ (1,503,649)

Other Comprehensive (Loss) – 2018
Unrealized (losses) on securities

available-for-sale (104,685) -- (104,685)
Minimum pension liability -- 84,481 84,481
Deferred income tax effect 28,265 (22,810) 5,455

(76,420) 61,671 (14,749)

Balance December 31, 2018, Accumulated
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of

Deferred Tax (363,188) (1,155,210) (1,518,398)

Other Comprehensive Income – 2019
Unrealized gains on securities

available-for-sale 725,131 -- 725,131
Less: Reclassification adjustment for

realized (gains) (28,524) -- (28,524)
Minimum pension liability -- (232,539) (232,539)
Deferred income tax effect (188,084) 62,786 (125,298)

508,523 (169,753) 338,770

Balance December 31, 2019, Accumulated
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of

Deferred Tax 145,335 (1,324,963) (1,179,628)

Other Comprehensive (Loss) – 2020
Unrealized gains on securities

available-for-sale 520,427 -- 520,427
Less: Reclassification adjustment for

realized (gains) (11,519) -- (11,519)
Minimum pension liability -- (675,492) (675,492)
Deferred income tax effect (137,405) 182,383 44,978

371,503 (493,109) (121,606)

Balance December 31, 2020, Accumulated
Other Comprehensive (Loss), Net of

Deferred Tax $ 516,838 $ (1,818,072) $ (1,301,234)
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NOTE 12. OFF-BALANCE SHEET ACTIVITIES 

The bank is a party to credit-related financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in 
the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers.  These
financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, including undisbursed lines 
of credit, as well as letters of credit. Such commitments involve, to varying degrees, 
elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the 
consolidated balance sheets.

The bank's exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of these 
commitments.  The bank follows the same credit policies in making commitments as it does 
for on-balance sheet instruments.

At December 31, 2020 and 2019, the following financial instruments were outstanding whose 
contract amounts represent credit risks:

2020 2019

Commitments to grant loans and extend credit $ 1,702,700 $ 3,969,400
Unfunded commitments under lines of credit 11,271,300 9,185,500
Letters of credit 43,000 15,000

$ 13,017,000 $ 13,169,900

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no 
violation of any condition established in the contract.  Commitments generally have fixed 
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee.  Unfunded
commitments under commercial lines of credit and revolving credit lines are commitments 
for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers.  Certain of these commitments, 
such as lines of credit, may expire without being drawn upon.  Therefore, the total 
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements.  The amount 
and type of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the bank, is based on management's
credit evaluation of the customer.

Letters of credit are conditional lending commitments issued by the bank to guarantee the 
performance of a customer to a third party.  Those letters of credit are primarily issued to 
support private borrowing arrangements. Essentially all letters of credit issued have 
expiration dates ranging from three to seven years.  The credit risk involved in issuing letters
of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loans to customers.  The bank’s
policy for obtaining collateral, and the nature of such collateral, is essentially the same as that 
involved in making commitments to extend credit.
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NOTE 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the bank has granted loans to executive officers, directors 
and their affiliates. Set forth below is a summary of the related party loan activity for the 
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019:

2020 2019
Balance, beginning $ 674,780 $ 574,942

New borrowings 230,000 793,600
Repayments (760,677) (693,762)

Balance, ending $ 144,103 $ 674,780

NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The subsidiary bank has a defined benefit pension plan covering all eligible employees. 
According to the plan, employees must work a minimum of 1,000 hours during the first 
twelve months and attain age 21 before they are eligible to participate.  To be fully 
vested, employees must be employed for three years.

Included in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2020 are unrecognized 
actuarial losses of $2,490,511 ($1,818,072, net of tax) which have not yet been recognized in
net periodic cost.  The actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income 
and expected to be recognized in net periodic pension cost during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2021 is $119,728 ($87,401, net of tax).

Net periodic pension cost included the following components:

Year Ended December 31,
2020 2019 2018

Service cost $ 220,053 $ 176,562 $ 197,538
Interest cost 172,843 174,791 170,029
Expected return on plan assets (285,836) (231,445) (254,350)
Recognized net actuarial loss 76,742 70,087 79,143
Amortization of prior service cost -- -- (5,912)
Total Pension Expense $ 183,802 $ 189,995 $ 186,448

Weighted-average assumption:
Discount rate 3.50% 4.25% 3.75%
Expected return on assets 6.50% 6.50% 6.75%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is based on historical returns of various
benchmark indices and the plan’s current asset mix.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

 

38

NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the projected benefit obligation and 
the fair value of plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

December 31,
2020 2019

Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 4,981,287 $ 4,155,240
Service cost 220,053 176,562
Interest cost 172,843 174,791
Actuarial gain (loss) 698,899 547,235
Benefits paid (228,609) (72,541)
Projected benefit at end of the year 5,844,473 4,981,287

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 4,147,802 3,424,289
Actual return on plan assets 252,734 495,000
Benefits paid (228,609) (72,541)
Employer contributions 300,000 320,000
Administrative expenses (20,234) (18,946)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 4,451,693 4,147,802
Funded status $(1,392,780) $ (833,485)

Weighted-average assumptions at end of year:
Discount rate 2.75% 3.50%
Rate of compensation increase 3.00% 3.00%

Mortality table assumptions at end of year:

December 31,
2020 2019

Post-Retirement PRI-2012 PRI-2012
Proj. with MP-2020 Proj. with MP-2019

Retirees/Beneficiaries PRI-2012 PRI-2012
Scale MP-2020 Scale MP-2019
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NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position consist of:

2020 2019
Noncurrent assets $ 1,097,731 $ 981,533
Noncurrent liabilities (2,490,511) (1,815,018)

$(1,392,780) $ (833,485)

Unrecognized actuarial (losses) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive (loss) (net 
of tax effect) was ($493,109) and ($169,753) for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defined benefit pension plan was $4,758,881 and 
$4,082,840 at December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

The subsidiary bank’s pension plan asset allocations at December 31, 2020 and 2019, are as
follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
at December 31,

Asset Category 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 10% 2%
Bonds, bond funds and other 

fixed income 40% 47%
Equity securities 50% 51%
Total 100% 100%

The subsidiary bank’s weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2020 and 2019, were 
approximately:

Weighted-Average
Target Plan Percentage of Plan Assets
Asset Allocation at December 31,

Asset Category Mix Range 2020 2019

Cash and cash equivalents 2% 0 – 10% 10% 2%
Bonds, bond funds and other

fixed income 49% 45 – 55% 40% 47%
Equities (common stock and

stock funds) 49% 45 – 55% 50% 51%
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NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The investment policy, as established by the plan’s trustees, is to invest in assets based on the 
target allocations shown on the previous page or as deemed appropriate based on current 
market conditions.  The assets will be reallocated periodically by the trustees based on the 
allocation ranges set forth in the plan to meet target allocations. The investment policy is 
reviewed periodically to determine if the policy or the actual asset allocation range should be 
changed.  The plan assets will be invested with the primary goal to ensure the solvency of the 
plan over time and to meet pension obligations as required.  The secondary goal is to seek the 
highest rate of return possible without taking excess risk.  The plan will also maintain sufficient 
liquidity to provide for the payment of benefits or distributions.  Assets will be invested in a 
balanced portfolio composed primarily of equities, fixed income, and cash or cash equivalent 
money market investments.

To minimize risk through proper diversification, no individual holding (excluding mutual 
funds) may exceed 10% of total market value.  To the extent possible, the fixed income 
portion of the portfolio will be diversified by issuer and by maturity date and the equity 
portion of the investment portfolio will be adequately diversified by industry, investment 
style, and geographic region.  The use of speculative common stock holdings is precluded by 
the plan.

The company groups its pension plan assets in three levels, based on the markets in which 
the assets are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair value. 
These levels are as follows:

Level 1 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the 
measurement date for identical assets.  Valuations are obtained from readily available 
pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets.

Level 2 – Valuation is based on quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs that 
are observable either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset.
Valuations are obtained from pricing models and discounted cash flows that consider 
standard input factors such as observable market data, benchmark yields, interest rate 
volatilities, broker/dealer quotes, and credit spreads.

Level 3 – Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market 
activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets.  Valuation methodologies vary 
based upon the individual types of assets.
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NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the bank’s pension plan assets at December 31, 2020 and 2019, by asset 
category are as follows:

2020
Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets for Significant Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 433,216 $ 433,216 $ -- $ --

Fixed income:
Corporate bonds 1,724,691 -- 1,724,691 --
Mutual funds 65,946 65,946 -- --

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 2,227,840 2,227,840 -- --

$ 4,451,693 $ 2,727,002 $ 1,724,691 $ --

2019
Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets for Significant Significant

Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs

Asset Category Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Cash and cash 

equivalents $ 64,926 $ 64,926 $ -- $ --

Fixed income:
Municipal bonds 30,396 -- 30,396 --
Corporate bonds 1,417,704 -- 1,417,704 --
Mutual funds 506,973 506,973 -- --

Equity securities:
Mutual funds 2,127,803 2,127,803 -- --

$ 4,147,802 $ 2,699,702 $ 1,448,100 $ --



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
MOUNTAIN-VALLEY BANCSHARES, INC.

 

42

NOTE 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS (CONTINUED)

Estimated future benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate,
for each of the next five fiscal years, and in the aggregate for the five fiscal years 
thereafter, are as follows:

Year(s) Amount

2021 $ 144,695
2022 148,502
2023 189,138
2024 208,915
2025 210,473
2026 – 2030 1,247,870

Total $2,149,593

The subsidiary bank expects to contribute approximately $350,000 to its pension plan in 2021.

In addition to the defined benefit plan, the company’s subsidiary, Mountain Valley
Bank, N.A., also has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan covering substantially all eligible 
employees.  Under the provisions of the plan, eligible employees may defer a portion of 
their compensation, not to exceed the dollar limit determined by law.  A matching
contribution equal to a percentage of the amount the employee deferred is determined 
annually by the employer.  Employees must complete one year of service and attain age 
21 before they are eligible to participate. The company contributed approximately 
$14,000, $14,000, and $13,000 to the plan for the years 2020, 2019, and 2018,
respectively.

NOTE 15. AVAILABLE BORROWINGS

The subsidiary bank has available from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh a
line of credit with maximum available borrowings as of December 31, 2020, of 
approximately $51,655,000.  This line of credit has a variable interest rate based on the 
Federal Home Loan Bank’s cost of funds and is collateralized by certain qualifying assets
as defined by the agreement.

In addition to the Federal Home Loan Bank available borrowings, the bank also has 
available borrowings with correspondent banks under various credit agreements of 
$7,750,000 as of December 31, 2020.  Borrowings under these agreements are unsecured
with interest rates at the current Federal Funds rate.  These agreements are considered 
for renewal annually by the parties.
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NOTE 15. AVAILABLE BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Federal Reserve Bank also provides available borrowings through its discount 
window subject to available collateral.

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the bank had available similar borrowing 
arrangements.  As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the bank had no outstanding 
borrowings under the above agreements.

NOTE 16. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The company (on a consolidated basis) and the bank are subject to various regulatory 
capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory, and possibly additional 
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material 
effect on the company’s and the bank's financial statements.  

Under the regulatory capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for 
prompt corrective action, the company and the bank must meet specific capital 
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities and certain off-
balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory reporting requirements.  The 
capital amounts and classifications under the prompt corrective action guidelines are 
also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk 
weightings and other factors.  Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to 
bank holding companies.

In 2019, the federal banking agencies jointly issued a final rule that provides for a
community bank leverage ratio framework (CBLR framework) for qualifying 
community banking organizations. This final rule established an optional, simplified 
measure of capital adequacy consistent with Section 201 of the Economic Growth, 
Regulatory Relief, and Consumer Protection Act.  The final rule became effective on 
January 1, 2020 and was elected by the bank as of December 31, 2020.  In April 2020,
the federal banking agencies issued an interim final rule that makes temporary changes 
to the CBLR framework, pursuant to section 4012 of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act, and a second interim final rule that provides a 
graduated increase in the community bank leverage ratio requirement after the 
expiration of the temporary changes implemented pursuant to section 4012 of the 
CARES Act.
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NOTE 16. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

The community bank leverage ratio removes the requirement for qualifying banking 
organizations to calculate and report risk-based capital, but rather only requires a Tier 
1 to average assets (leverage) ratio.  Qualifying banking organizations that elect to use 
the community bank leverage ratio framework and that maintain a leverage ratio of
greater than required minimums will be considered to have satisfied the generally 
applicable risk based and leverage capital requirements in the agencies’ capital rules 
and, if applicable, will be considered to have met the well capitalized ratio 
requirements for purposes of section 38 of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act.  Under 
the interim final rules the community bank leverage ratio minimum requirement is 8% 
as of December 31, 2020, 8.5% for calendar year 2021, and 9% for calendar year 2022 
and beyond.  The interim rule allows for a two-quarter grace period to correct a ratio 
that falls below the required amount, provided that the bank maintains a leverage ratio
of 7% as of December 31, 2020, 7.5% for calendar year 2021, and 8% for calendar year 
2022 and beyond.

Under the final rule, an eligible banking organization can opt out of CBLR framework 
and revert back to the risk-weighting framework without restriction. As of December
31, 2020, both the company and bank were qualifying community banking organizations 
as defined by the federal banking agencies and elected to measure capital adequacy 
under the CBLR framework.

Actual and required capital amounts and ratios are presented below as of December 31:

Minimum To Be
Well Capitalized
Under Prompt

Corrective Action
             Actual        Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2020:

Tier 1 (Core) Capital to 
Average Total Assets:

Consolidated $ 21,869,000 13.0% N/A             N/A
Subsidiary bank $ 21,553,000 12.8% $ 13,438,000 8.0%
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NOTE 16. MINIMUM REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS (CONTINUED)

Minimum To Be
Well Capitalized

For Capital Under Prompt
Adequacy Corrective Action

           Actual        Purposes Provisions

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

As of December 31, 2019:

Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:
Consolidated $ 22,055,000 26.8% $ 6,578,000 8.0% N/A            N/A
Subsidiary bank $ 21,748,000 26.5% $ 6,575,000 8.0% $ 8,219,000 10.0%

Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:
Consolidated $ 21,026,000 25.6% $ 4,933,000 6.0% N/A            N/A
Subsidiary bank $ 20,719,000 25.2% $ 4,932,000 6.0% $ 6,575,000 8.0%

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets:
Consolidated $ 21,017,000 25.6% $ 3,700,000 4.5% N/A         N/A
Subsidiary bank $ 20,719,000 25.2% $ 3,699,000 4.5% $ 5,342,000 6.5%

Leverage Capital to Adjusted Average Total Assets:
Consolidated $ 21,017,000 14.6% $ 5,759,000 4.0% N/A            N/A
Subsidiary bank $ 20,719,000 14.4% $ 5,758,000 4.0% $ 7,198,000 5.0%
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NOTE 17. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

The investment of the company (Mountain-Valley Bancshares, Inc.) in its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Mountain Valley Bank, N.A., is presented on the equity method of accounting.
The company’s balance sheets at December 31, 2020 and 2019, as well as the related 
statements of income and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and
2018, are as follows:

                                               BALANCE SHEETS
           December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
ASSETS

Cash $ 334,912 $ 321,688
Investment in Mountain Valley Bank, N.A. 20,252,048 19,538,612
Premises and equipment 18,780 24,145

TOTAL ASSETS $ 20,605,740 $ 19,884,445

LIABILITIES
Other liabilities $ 37,531 $ 37,809

TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,531 37,809

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 20,568,209 19,846,636

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 20,605,740 $ 19,884,445
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NOTE 17. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY (CONTINUED)

                   STATEMENTS OF INCOME
    Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

2020 2019 2018
INCOME
Dividend from bank subsidiary $ 480,937 $ 480,937 $ 460,027
Other 18,360 18,360 18,360

499,297 499,297 478,387
EXPENSES
Other 7,323 6,195 6,844

7,323 6,195 6,844

Income Before Income Taxes and
Equity in Undistributed Net Income
of Subsidiary 491,974 493,102 471,543

INCOME TAX 2,900 3,200 3,000
489,074 489,902 468,543

Equity in Undistributed Net Income
of Bank Subsidiary 835,042 1,115,757 931,918

NET INCOME $ 1,324,116 $ 1,605,659 $ 1,400,461
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NOTE 17. CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY (CONTINUED)

                STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
                            Years Ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018

2020 2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net Income $1,324,116 $1,605,659 $1,400,461
Adjustments to reconcile net income

to net cash provided by operating 
activities:

Equity in undistributed net
income of bank subsidiary (835,042) (1,115,757) (931,918)

Depreciation and amortization 5,365 5,365 5,365
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities (278) 116 (1,659)

NET CASH PROVIDED BY 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 494,161 495,383 472,249

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Dividends paid (480,937) (480,937) (460,027)

NET CASH (USED IN) FINANCING 
ACTIVITIES (480,937) (480,937) (460,027)

Net Increase in Cash 13,224 14,446 12,222

Cash at Beginning of Year 321,688 307,242 295,020

Cash at End of Year $ 334,912 $ 321,688 $ 307,242
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NOTE 18. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The company’s sources of revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606 is 
recognized within Non-Interest Income.  The following table presents sources of revenue from 
contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606 for the years ended December 31, 2020, 2019,
and 2018:

2020 2019 2018

Charges and fees on deposit accounts $ 254,337 $ 308,119 $ 311,520
Debit and credit card fees 407,163 393,504 367,096
Safe deposit box fees 12,823 13,695 15,503
Gain/(loss) on sale of other real estate (815) -- --

The company elected the modified retrospective approach of adoption; therefore, prior period 
balances are presented under legacy GAAP and may not be comparable to current year 
presentation.

A description of the company’s revenue streams accounted for under ASC 606 is as follows:

Charges and Fees on Deposit Accounts
The company earns fees from its deposit customers for transaction-based, account 
maintenance, and overdraft services.  Transaction-based fees, which include services such
as ATM use fees, stop payment charges, statement rendering, and ACH fees, are recognized 
at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in time the company fulfills the 
customer’s request.  Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily to monthly
maintenance, are earned over the course of a month, representing the period over which the 
company satisfies the performance obligation.  Overdraft fees are recognized at the point in 
time the overdraft occurs.  Service charges on deposits are withdrawn from the customers’
account balances.

Debit and Credit Card Fees
The company earns interchange fees from cardholder transactions conducted through the
card provider’s payment network.  Interchange fees from cardholder transactions 
represent a percentage of the underlying transaction value and are recognized daily, 
concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder.

Safe Deposit Box Fees
The company earns fees from customers for rental of safe deposit boxes.  Safe deposit box
rental fees are charged to the customer on an annual basis and recognized upon receipt of 
payment.  Rentals and renewals occur consistently over time, therefore, revenue is 
recognized on a basis consistent with the duration of the performance obligation.
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NOTE 18. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS (CONTINUED)

Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Other Real Estate
The company records a gain or loss from the sale of other real estate owned when control of 
the property transfers to the buyer, which generally occurs at the time of an executed deed. 
When the company finances the sale of other real estate owned to the buyer, the company 
assesses whether the buyer is committed to perform their obligations under the contract 
and whether collectability of the transaction price is probable. Once these criteria are met, 
the other real estate owned asset is derecognized and the gain or loss on the sale is recorded 
upon the transfer of control of the property to the buyer.  If a significant financing 
component is present, the company adjusts the transaction price to determine the related 
gain or loss on the sale.

NOTE 19. COVID-19 ACCOUNTING IMPACT

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) announced a global health 
emergency relating to a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the COVID-
19 outbreak) and the risks to the international community as the virus spread globally beyond 
its point of origin.  In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic,
based on the rapid increase of exposure globally.

On March 27, 2020 the President of the United States signed into law the Coronavirus Aid, 
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act in response to the coronavirus pandemic.  This 
legislation aims at providing relief for individuals and businesses that have been negatively 
impacted by the coronavirus pandemic.

On December 27, 2020 the President of the United States signed into law the Coronavirus 
Appropriations ACT, 2021 (the Appropriations Act), which enacts numerous stimulus and 
economic assistance provisions.

The CARES Act includes a provision for the bank to opt out of applying the “trouble-debt 
restructuring” (TDR) accounting guidance in ASC 310-40 for certain loan modifications.  Loan
modifications made between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 2020 were eligible for this relief 
if the related loans were not more than 30 days past due as of December 31, 2019.  The
Appropriations Act extends the opt out period end-date from December 30, 2020 to the earlier 
of January 1, 2022 or the date that is 60 days after the date on which the COVID-19 public 
health emergency is terminated.

While the company continues to evaluate the disruption caused by the pandemic and impact of 
the CARES Act and Appropriations Act, the full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak continues 
to evolve as of the date of this report.  As such, it is uncertain as to the full magnitude the 
pandemic will have on the company in the future.

NOTE 20. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The company has evaluated subsequent events through February 16, 2021, the date these 
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.  No material subsequent events
have occurred since December 31, 2020, requiring recognition or disclosure.
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If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup in MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper

Submission Procedure
When you are finished, send a saved copy to your FRB contact.  See the detailed instructions on this site for more information
If you are e‐mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e‐mail

Note:
To satisfy the FR Y‐10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y‐10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with aData Action of Change, Close, Delete, or Add.
The FR Y‐10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y‐10 Online application ‐ https://y10online.federalreserve.gov

* FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only.  Verification of these values is not required.

Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* Comments
OK Full Service (Head Office) 1011432 MOUNTAIN VALLEY BANK, N.A.    317 DAVIS AVENUE    ELKINS           WV 26241      RANDOLPH  UNITED STATES   Not Required Not Required MOUNTAIN VALLEY BANK, N.A.     1011432
OK Full Service 2260974 CHENOWETH CREEK OFFICE          1955 BEVERLY PIKE    ELKINS           WV 26241      RANDOLPH  UNITED STATES   Not Required Not Required MOUNTAIN VALLEY BANK, N.A.     1011432
OK Full Service 886530 MILL CREEK BRANCH                       9896 SENECA TRAIL   MILL CREEK  WV 26280      RANDOLPH  UNITED STATES   Not Required Not Required MOUNTAIN VALLEY BANK, N.A.     1011432
OK Full Service 1993211 PARSONS BRANCH                           401 FIRST STREET       PARSONS      WV 26287      TUCKER         UNITED STATES   Not Required Not Required MOUNTAIN VALLEY BANK, N.A.     1011432I I I I I I I I I 


	Table of Contents
	Report Items 1 & 2
	Report Item 3
	Report Item 4
	Attachment A- 2020 Annual Report


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /ENU ([Based on 'Dynstrip Set'] [Based on '[High Quality Print]'] Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents for quality printing on desktop printers and proofers.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks true
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        9
        9
        9
        9
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName (U.S. Web Coated \(SWOP\) v2)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 6
      /MarksWeight 0.250000
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /RomanDefault
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


	F[0]: 
	P2[0]: 
	Subform2[0]: 
	#subform[0]: 
	LegalTitle1[0]: 
	Street1[0]: 
	#subform[1]: 
	City1[0]: 
	State1[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE1[0]: 

	Physical1[0]: 
	LegalTitle2[0]: 
	Street2[0]: 
	#subform[2]: 
	City2[0]: 
	State2[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE2[0]: 

	Physical2[0]: 
	LegalTitle3[0]: 
	Street3[0]: 
	#subform[3]: 
	City3[0]: 
	State3[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE3[0]: 

	Physical3[0]: 
	LegalTitle4[0]: 
	Street4[0]: 
	#subform[4]: 
	City4[0]: 
	State4[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE4[0]: 

	Physical4[0]: 

	LegalTitle5[0]: 
	Street5[0]: 
	#subform[5]: 
	City5[0]: 
	State5[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE5[0]: 

	Physical5[0]: 
	LegalTitle6[0]: 
	Street6[0]: 
	#subform[6]: 
	City6[0]: 
	State6[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE6[0]: 

	Physical6[0]: 
	LegalTitle7[0]: 
	Street7[0]: 
	#subform[7]: 
	City7[0]: 
	State7[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE7[0]: 

	Physical7[0]: 
	LegalTitle8[0]: 
	Street8[0]: 
	#subform[8]: 
	City8[0]: 
	State8[0]: []
	ZIP_CODE8[0]: 

	Physical8[0]: 





